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BIIF Holdco Limited
Strategic Report

Year Ended 31 December 2019

The directors present their Annual Report and the audited consolidated financial statements of BIIF Holdco Limited ("the
Company”) and its consolidated subsidiaries (“the Group) for the year ended 31 December 2019,

Purpose, Principal Objectives and Strategies

The Company’s purpose is to invest in operational projects that deliver an income yield to investors. The principal activity of the
Company was that of a holding company. The principal activity of the Group was the provision, operation and maintenance of
various assets under the Private Finance Initiative (‘PFI") and within regulated renewable energy markets.

Review of the Business

The results for the year are in line with management’s current expectations with each of the Group’s investments performing
materially in line with the relevant financial model.

The directors have considered the future financial impact to the Group of the Corenavirus pandemic, taking into account the sources
of ingome and additional expenditure, if any. It is their view that, the shareholder distributions from the underlying investments are
expected to continue in line with modelled expectations and it is anticipated that the income of the Group will not be materially
impacted. Some variable revenue from transportation projects may be impacted by restrictions imposed by the UK government in
2020, but this is not expected to be material in the context of the large and diversified portfolio of investments held by the Group.

Since the balance sheet date, on 27 February 2020 one of the Group’s senior lending facilities totalling £468,620k as at 31
December 20019 was refinanced into a new £600m facility fully amortising to 2037. The new facilily consists of a mix of Bank
and Institutional lenders with 5 tranches of debt, a mix of fixed, floating and RPI linked debt, with differing tenors.

Future Developments

The directors intend for the business to continue to hold its interests in the investments.

Key Performance Indicators

Group performance is measnred on the basis of cash flows, both for shareholders and lenders. As with all companies in this sector,
detailed cash flow projections are prepared to demonstrate the ability of the business to service its debt. Current projections
demonstrate that the business can continue to maintain its debt service cover ratios at the base case levels agreed with the Group’s
lenders and will continue to pay returns to shareholders. As such the directors are satisfied that the Group’s performance is in line
with forecast and, therefore, consider the going concern basis of preparation to be appropriate,

Going Concern

The Group has received loans from external banks, which are secured against the cash flows from the Group’s investments together
with issued Furobonds. The financial siatements have been prepared on a going cencern basis following an assessment of the financial
viability of each of the Group’s principal investments, and also the sources of cash flow projected to be available to service the
portfolio debt obligations within the Group. This assessment indicates that although the Group currently has net liabilities, sufficient
funds will be generated to allow ongoing obligations to be met as they fall due.

In addition, the directors have also considered the impact to the Group of the Covid-19 pandemic. The majority of the project
companies are availability based and continue to receive their unitary charge from their customer in line with their contractual
arrangements, which allows them to service their debt obligations A small number of projects are exposed to demand-risk and these
have been impacted, for example, following a significant fall in travel as a result of the pandemic. In its assessment of the Group's
financial resources, the directors are not currently forecasting to receive any distributions in 2020 from the demand-risk projects.

After making the assessment on going concern, the directors considered it appropriate to prepare the financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis, having considered the impact of Covid-19 on its operations and on its investments. The Company
has sufficient financial resources and liquidity in the current economic environment to continue operations and remain within its
borrowing covenants for a period of at least 12 months from the date of this report. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing these financial statements.



BIIF Holdco Limited
Strategic Report (continued)

Financial Risk Management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks that include retail price indices, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Group
has in place measures to limit the adverse effects of changes in these risks. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash deposits and proceeds from investment sums. The Group also invests
in cash deposits at floating rates.

Objectives and policies

The Group's exposure to and management of interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk are detailed below:

Inierest rate risk
The finan¢ial risk management objectives of the Group are to ensure that financial risks are mitigated by the use of financial

instruments. The Group uses interest rate swaps to reduce its expose to interest rate movements. Financial instruments are not used
for speculative purposes.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer, counterparty to a financial instrument or counterparty for facility

management services fails to meet their contractual obligations.
Credit risk is overseen by management, and arises mainly from:

cash and cash equivalents;

derivative financial instruments;

credit exposures to amounts due from outstanding receivables; and
other committed transaclions with counterpartics,

The Group’s objective is to minimise credit risk to an acceptable level whilst not overly restricting the Group’s ability to generate
revenue and profit. It is the Group’s policy to invest assets safely and profitably. Management monitors credit risk closely and
considers that its current policies in managing the exposure to credit risk are appropriate.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of its key customers or counterparties. The
Group’s largest credit exposures are to public sector bodies and financial institutions. The amounts owed by the public sector bodies
in the United Kingdom are considered to be a low credit risk by the Group. The counterparties for facility management are with well-
established companies that operate several facility management contracts and the Group considers these companies unlikely to default
on their respective liabilities to the Group.

In determining whether a financial asset is impaired due to credit or counterparty risks, the Group takes account of:

e The fair value of the asset at the statement of financial position date and, where applicable, the historic fair value
of the asset;
In the case of receivables, the counterparty’s typical payment patterns; and
In the case of other counterparty’s, the current contract performance and the latest available information on the
counterparty's credit worthiness.

Liguidity risk
The Group's liquidity risk is principally managed through financing the Group by means of long term borrowing.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s activities are based on long-term contracts with public sector counterparties. There is arisk, arising from any future
changes in political priorities, that the public sector may wish to terminate these contracts early. In most cases, the contracts have
robust provisions which set out the basis on which investors will be compensated in the event of early termination at the request of
the public sector. Where such provisions do not exist, termination and associated compensation is subject to mutual agreement.
Overall, the directors consider the risk of material loss arising from widespread early termination of the projects to be low.

Another risk faced by the Group is the future cost of lifecycle expenditure. Each project has a lifecycle profile which is regularly
reviewed and managed, to highlight and mitigate any potential adverse effects.



BIIF Holdco Limited
Strategic Report (continued)

$§172 Statement

The directors of the Group consider that they have adhered to the requirements of section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 (the 'Act’)
and have, in good faith, acted in a way that they consider would be most likely to promote the success of the Group for the benefit
of its shareholder and have had regard to and recognised the importance of considering all stakeholders and other matters (as set out
in 5.172(1) (a-f) of the Act) in its decision making.

Taking into account the relative size of the Group, it is considered reasonable that the day to day decision making of the subsidiary
assets is delegated to project directors, regularly reporting to the Group Board. This promotes full and effective interaction across
all levels of the Group and supports the delivery of strategic and business objectives within a framework of best corporate

governance practice.

The following paragraphs summarise how the Directors’ fulfil their duties:

Business conduct

The Group relies on maintaining a strong reputation, We ensure our values and ethics are alignhed with our purpose and ways of
working.

Our People

The Group is committed to being a responsible business with its behaviour aligned with expectations of society as a whole. Given
the size of the group there are very few employees, however, for the Group to succeed we need to manage their performance,
develop and bring through talent while ensuring we operate as efficiently as possible. We must also ensure we share common values
that inform and guide our behaviour so we achieve the goals of the Group in the right way.

Business Relationships

The Board has an important relationship with Infrastructure Managers Limited (“IML"), the Company Secrectary and a key
stakeholder. IML, which is also a Group company, provides financial and operational management services to the Group. The
project directors meet with the Board on a quarterly basis and information is provided at the meeting by the operational and financial
management teams. This information will have regard to health and safety matters, the operational and financial performance of the
project, planned major maintenance works and relationships with the client and the main subcontractors. The operational and
financial management team make recommendations to the Board. These Board meetings are minuted and actions arising are

monitored.
Community and Environment

The Group's approach is to create positive change for the people and communities with which we interact. The Board recognises
that the Group is a key partner in the delivery of public infrastructure and encourages its partners in considering and delivering
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) values.

Shareholders

The Board is committed to openly engaging with their shareholders, as they recognise the importance of a continuing effective
dialogue to ensure full understanding of Group strategy and objectives. The ultimate parent and controlling entity of the Group is
BIIF LP. BIIF LP is owned by a number of professional investors and the directors of the company meet regularly with these
investors to update them on the performance of the Group.

Principal decisions

The Board is focused on long-term predictable returns and risks across the business are carefully assessed and managed. The Group's
principal risks and uncertainties are detailed earlier in the Strategic Report,
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Examples of principal decisions made by the Board during the year ended 31 December 2019 were as follows:

Decision

Commence external debt refinancing.

Context

The Group had a portfolio debt facility secured on the equity
and subordinated debt cash flows of a portion of its underlying
project investments. A substantial part of the facility was due
to mature in December 2025.

Outcome

The maturity of the debt finance was extended to 2037 on better
terms and the refinancing risk in relation to the previous facility
was extinguished as the new facility is fully amortising.
Completion of this refinancing occurred after the balance sheet
date, in 2020,

Decision

Undertale detailed analysis on the corporation tax impact
of residual value receipts for relevant projects.

Context

A number of projects are forecast to receive residual value
receipts at the end of their concession period. The nature of the
receipt and its tax implications needs to be assessed in relation
to the financial model for each project.

Outcome

The review identified areas where the financial models required
updating-and in one case where a legal opinion was required to
clarify the tax position,

Approved by the board on 30 September 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

James Dawes
Director




BIIF Holdco Limited
Directors’ Report

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Results and Dividends

The consolidated profit after tax and minority interests in the financial year was £19,659K (2018: £33,286K). The result for the vear
will be transferred to reserves. The Company made a profit of £2,135K (2018: loss of £1,604K) for the financial year.

No dividends (2018: £nil) were paid by the Company during the year.

Financial Risk Management

See information provided in the Strategic Report.

Going Concern

See information provided in the Strategic Report.

Future Developments

See information provided in the Strategic Report.

Events after the End of the Reporting Period

Particulars of events after the reporting date are detailed in note 19 to the Annual Report and Financial Statements.

Directors and their Interests

The directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report, shown on page 1, had no beneficial interest in the Company
or its subsidiaries.

Disclosure of Information to Auditors
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of the approval of this report confirms that:
. so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware; and

. they have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Independent Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution concerning their
reappointment will be proposed at the Annual General meeting.

The Directors’ Report was approved by the board on 30 September 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

James Dawes
Director

Registered number 06704550



BIIF Holdco Limited
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Group Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
prepared the Group and Cempany financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the
Group and Company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 have been followed for the Group and
Company financial statements, subject to any maierial departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Company and
enable them to cnsure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial

statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The Directors' Responsibilities were approved by the board on 30 September 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Q“_\ ~>{~"‘>

James Dawes
Director



BIIF Holdco Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of BIIF Holdco Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion, BIIF Holdco Limited’s group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements™):

e give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2019 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law); and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements (the “Annual
Report™), which comprise: the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2019; the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows, and the consolidated and company statements of
changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant

accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law, Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Our audit approach
Overview
s Overall group materiality: £8,812,000 (2018: £8,762,000), based on 5% of earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation ("EBITDA").
*  Overall company materiality: £7,931,000 (2018: £7,886,160), based on 1% of total assets restricted to
90% of the overall group materiality.
Muoteriality
Audit scope
Key audit
maiters

e  The group comprises a large number of components, being operating subsidiaries, intermediary holding
companies, joint ventures and associates.

*  Our audit scope was tailored to provide appropriate ceverage of the conselidated financial statements
through audit procedures performed across the components by the group audit team.

8




BIIF Holdco Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of BIIF Holdco Limited

*  The components where we performed full scope audit work accounted for approximately 90% of the
group’s turnover.

»  Risk of incorrect recognition of turnover as a result of inappropriate calculation and allocation of the
unitary charge (Group)

¢  Impact of Covid-19 (Group}
e Carrying value of investments (Company)

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements.
In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgments, for example in respect of significant accounting estimates
that invelved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits we also
addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the
directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
frand) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit stratcgy; the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results
of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our

audit.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Risk of incorrect recognition of turnover as a result of inappropriate
calculation and allocation of the unitary charge (Group)

Through its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, the group has
service concession arrangements with external parties for the design,
construction, finance and maintenance of various public use assets
including education facilities, railways, hospitals, roads, prisons and
police stations.

A signifi¢ant proportion of the service concession arrangements are
accounted for as finance debtors, with amortisation and finance
income recognised each year at a constant rate.

The unitary charge payments received from customers for the service
concession arrangements are allocated to turnover, finance income
and the finance debtor amortisation. The allocation to turnover is
calculated by applying a margin to the costs incurred in the operations
and ongoing maintenance of the related asset. Due to the judgment
required 1o estimate the margin over the life of the project and the
significant impact that the allocation of the unitary charge has on key
accounts: tumover, finance income, the finance debtor and any unitary
charge control accounts (“UCCA”), including those most susceptible
to fraudulent manipulation, we consider this risk to be a key area of
audit focus.

Our audit addressed the risk as follows:
In each project where such accounting is applied, we:

- tested a sample of unitary charge payments received from the
customer, agreeing to invoice and evidence of cash receipt and used
this to determine an expectation for total value of payments received
in the year;

- compared the margin applied in the current year to the margin
applied in the prior year. Where there is a material movement in the
margin, we sought to undetstand and corroborate the factors that
have driven this change. This included analysing the project financial
models to establish any changes in trends for expected future costs
which impact the lifetime margin of the project, and investigating
unusual trends in key elements of the project forecasts;

- recalculated the revenue recognised by applying the margin to
qualifying costs incurred in the year ended 31 December 2019,

- re-performed the allocation of the unitary payment between turnover,
finance debtor amortisation, finance income and where applicable
the UCCA and checked that the allocated amounts had been
recognised appropriately.

Our audit work did not identify any issues and we therefore concluded

that there was no material misstatement in any of the impacted financia!

statement lines.

Impaci of Covid-19 (Group)

Covid-19 was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organisation
on 11 March 2020 and the on-going response is having an

Our audit addressed the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the
company as follows:

- We considered management’s assessment that the pandemic
constitutes a non-adjusting post balance sheet event and concluded

9
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of BIIF Holdco Limited

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

unprecedented impact on the wider economy and it is necessary to
consider the impact on BIIF Holdco Limited.

The company does not trade itself but is used as a vesse! to consolidate
the entire BIIF group on behalf of the ultimate parent company (BIIF
LP). The company itself is funded by a Eurobond issued on the
Channel Islands Securities Exchange which is due to mature on 31
December 2045.

Management and the directors have assessed the impact of Covid-19
and have determined that it constitutes a non-adjusting post balance
sheet event. In adopting the going concern basis in preparing these
financial statements, management have considered the impact of the
pandemic on the company’s current and fiture operations and have
concluded that the likely impact is low. In reaching this assessment,
and in considering the disclosures to be made within the financial
statements, management have given particular focus on the
recoverability of amounts due from other group entities.

Because of its significance to the financial statements and to our audit,
we concluded that the uncertainty created by the Covid-19 pandemic
on the operations of the company was a key audit matter.

that the decision was appropriate on the basis that the virus was
declared a pandemic after the balance sheet date.

- We considered management’s going concern models to ensure that
they were reasonable, and incorporated their assessment of the
impact of Covid-19 on the company’s cash flows.

- The company’s underlying investments, upon which it relies for its
cash inflows, are predominantly invested in availability based
Private Finance Initiative projects which receive unitary charge
payments from government departments. We obtained copies of
correspondence received by the Company and its subsidiaries from
the Cabinet Office and the Infrastructure and Projects Authority
which confirm that Private Finance Initiative work is essential, and
that relevant employees and subconiractors are considered key
workers during the pandemic. This correspondence also confirmed
that Covid-19 was not expected to be a Force Majeure event for
concession agreements and that public sector organisations are
expected to continue making unitary payments,

- We ensured that management's cash flow forecasts incorporated
adequate downside projections for those investments that are
demand based, checking that the Company continued to be able to
operate within facility levels, and in compliance with all covenants
throughout the going concern period; and

- We considered the disclosures made by management in the
financial statements, specifically within the Strategic Report, the
Directors’ Report, the accounting policies (note 1) and notc 19 on
Post balance sheet events, and considered whether these were in
line with our understanding.

Based on the procedures performed, we agreed with management’s
assessment that the Covid-19 pandemic is a non-adjusting post balance
sheet event, and that management’s assessment of the impact of the
pandemic of the company has been appropriately disclosed within the
financial statements.

Carrying Value of Investments (Company)
Disclosure note 8 (£37,764,000)

The company acts as a helding company for a portfolio of PFI
investments. These investments are carried at cost. There is an
inherent risk in such an entity that the carrying value of the
investments could be impaired.

The company’s investment is in the share capital of two immediate
subsidiaries (BIF Holdce II and BIIF Issuerco), which each hold a
portfolio of further holding companics and PFI project companies.

As at 31 December 2019, the directors assessed the carrying value of
the investments held by the company.

The directors designated a Valuations Committee to oversee the
preparation of a discounted cash flow model, based upon forecast PFI
project performance, to calculate the net present value (“NPV"") of the
investment portfolio. They compared this NPV to the carrying value
of the investments in the financial statements. The directors’
assessment shows that there is significant headroom on the carrying
value and therefore no indication of any impairment.

This assessment, by its nature, requires the use of judgements and
estimates, and as a result was an area of focus for us in our audit.

We considered the process undertaken by the directors in concluding on
the NPV of the portfolio, including the expertise of the members of the
Valuation Committee and the approval process of the key assumptions
and conclusions.

We obtained the discounted cash flow model used by the directors to
calculate the NPV of the investment portfolio.

Our procedures over this model were as follows:

= We compared the underlying forecast cash flows, for a sample of
investments, to the individual project model.

We performed testing on a sample of the project models, including
look-back tests to assess the models’ historical forecasting
accuracy.

For each of the key assumptions applied in the calculation of the
discounted cash flows, including inflation rates and discount rates,
we compared them to matket expectations and independent
SOUrces,

We tested the mathematical and formulaic accuracy of the NPV
calculation,

We used our knowledge of the underlying portfolio of investments
to ensure that any specific issues or challenges on individual
projects had been  appropriately factored into the models for those
projects.

Our procedures did not identify any impairment.

10
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How we failored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry
in which they operate.

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,

In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.

As in all of our audits we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there
was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgment, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Company financial statements

Overall muteriality £3.812,000 (2018: £8,762,000). L£/7,931,000 (2018; £7,886,000).

How we determined it 5% of earnings before interest, tax, depreciation 1% of total assets, restricted to 90% of the
and amortisation ("EBITDA") overall group materiality

Rationale for benchmark ~ EBITDA is a generally accepted performance The principal operations of the Company are to
applied benchmark which is commonly used by OPerate as a holding company and to provide
sharcholders of groups with investment funding for its 1_nvestmt?nts. We believe therefore]
portfolios which are financed through debt. It is that total assets is the primary measure used by the
a benchmark that is closely correlated to the cash Shareholders in assessing the performance and
flows generated by the portfolio of investments. financial position of the entity, and is a generally,
It is therefore considered the most appropriate 8ccepted auditing benchmark.
benchmark for assessing materiality for the audit
of the Group.

For each component in the scope of our group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall group materiality. The
range of materiality allocated across components was between £7,022 and £7,931,00. Certain components were audited to a local
statutory audit materiality that was also less than our overall group materiality.

We agreed with the directors that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above £440,000 (Group audit)
(2018: £438,000) and £396,000 (Company audit) (2018: £394,000) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

* the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate;
or

* the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the group’s and company'’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of
at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s and
company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

11
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the infortnation in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other infortation is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to
report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’
Report for the year ended 31 December 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with

applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 6, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the finemcial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors® report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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BIIF Holdco Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of BIIF Holdco Limited

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

*  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
s the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Mark H s-Abrahall (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on Behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Edinburgh
30 September 2020
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Year ended 31 Dec 2019

Note £000

Turnover 2
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance costs 3

- Group
- Fair value gain on derivatives

(84,892)
4,533

Share of resulis in joint ventures and associates 9

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 4
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 6
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation

Non-controlling interests

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income/(expense)

Fair value movements on cash flow hedging instruments, net

of tax

- Group
- Associates and joint ventures

10,157
10,830

Non-controlling interests
Exchange differences on retranslation of subsidiary

undertakings
Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year
attributable to:

Non-controlling interests

Owners of the parent company

14

£000

349,945
(252,374)
97,571

(17,366)

80,205

(80,359)

39,027

38,873
(9,344)
29,529

(9,870)

19,659

20,987

66
(1,279)

39,433

{9,804)
49,237
39,433

Year ended 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000

332,998
(246,200)
86,798
(25,120)

61,678

(80,089)

27,728

(52,361)

33,481

42,798
(7,890)
T 34908
(1,622)

33,286

20,421

14,458

34,879

(309)
237

68,093

(1,931)
70,024
68,093



BIIF Holdco Limited

Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2019

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Investment properties
Investments

Investments

Interests in joint ventures:
Share of gross assets
Share of gross liabilities

Associates:
Interest in associates

Current assets

Debtors: due within one year
Debtors: due after more than one year
Cash in hand and at bank

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets/(liabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Derivative financial instruments

Provision for liabilities and charges
Deferred taxation

Net assets/(liabilities)

Note

~] =1

10
11

12

13

14

15

Group Group Company Company

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
281,481 330,861 - -
84,940 82,885 - -

- - 37,764 38,078

1,697,206 1,747,968 - 4
(1,436,680) (1,505,470 - .
88,030 88,758 ; 1
348,556 331,256 - -
714,977 743,032 37,764 38,078
161,648 138,183 1,410 723
1,149,427 1,221,497 - -
264,686 239,260 - -
1,575,761 1,598,940 1,410 723
(322,824) (299,721) - (1,762)
1,252,937 1,299,219 1,410 (1,039)
1,967,914 2,044,251 39,174 37,039
(1,864,839) (1,966,169) (38,078) (38,078)
(465,713) (483,157) - -
(57,350) (59,476} - -
(419,988) (464,551) 1,096 (1,039)
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2019

Group Group Company Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 16 - - - -
Hedging reserve (344,698) (365,751)
Other reserves 29,570 24,877 - -
Profit and loss account (156,598) (165,611)
At beginning of year - - (1,039) 565
Profit/ (loss) for the year - - 2,135 (1,604)
At end of year - - 1,096 (1,039
Total shareholders’ (deficit)/funds (471,726) (506,485) 1,096 (1,039)
Non-controlling interests 51,738 41,934 - -
(419,988) (464,551) 1,096 (1,039)

These financial statements on pages 14 to 51 were approved by the directors and authorised for issue on 30 September 2020

and are signed on its behalf by:

RENPD NP

James Dawes
Director
Company registration number: 06704550
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year then ended 31 December 2019

Company Called up Profit and loss
share capital account Total equity
£000 £°000 £'000
As at 1 January 2018 - 565 565
Loss for the year - (1,604} (1,604}
Total comprehensive income for the year - (1,604) (1,604)
As at 31 December 2018 - (1,039) (1,039)
Profit for the year - 2,135 2,135
Total comprehensive expense for the year - 2,135 2,135
As at 31 December 2019 ‘ - 1,096 1,096
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Note
Net cash from operating activities 17
Taxation
Net cash generated from operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Dividends received

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Proceeds from disposal of tangible fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of investment property
Net cash generated from investing activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Net decrease in bank borrowings and other loans

Capital repayments of loan amounts issued to joint
ventures and associates

Net movement in loan amounts due from project
companies in the Group under sub participation agreement
from the bank

Net cash used in financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

19

Year ended
31 Dec 2019

£000
109,976

(1,538)

108,438

61,280
29,265
(125)
42,809
7,691
140,920

(148,102)
(91,870)
3,480
12,783
(223,709)
25,649

(223)
239,260

264,686

Year ended
31 Dec 2018

£000
129,155

(10,788)

118,367

95,902
31,167
(32)
353

T 1273%

(172,440)
(83,901)

1,587

12,095

(242,659)

3,098

45
236,117

239,260



BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal Group Accounting Policies, all of which have been applied consistently throughout the year,
is set out below,

Statement of compliance

BIIF Holdco Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in England. The Registered Office is Cannon
Place, 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6AF,

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in compliance with FRS 102 as it applies to the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain
financial instruments and in accordance with Companies Act 2006 and applicable Accounting Standards in the United
Kingdom. The financial statements are prepared in sterling which is the functional currency of the Group and rounded to
the nearest £°000.

The directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and have not
prepared a statement of comprehensive income for BIIF Holdco Limited.

Going concern

The Group has received loans from external banks, which are secured against the cash flows from the Group’s investments
and also loans from its ultimate parent undertaking. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
following an assessment of the financial viability of each of the Group’s principal investments, and also the sources of cash
flow projected to be available to service the portfolio debt obligations within the Group. This assessment indicates that
although the Group currently has net liabilities, sufficient funds will be generated to allow ongoing obligations to be met ag
they fall due.

In addition, the directors have also considered the impact to the Group of the Covid-19 pandemic. The majority of the project
companies are availability based and continue to receive their unitary charge from their customer in line with their
contractual arrangements, which allows them tn service their debt obligations. A small number of projects are expnsed to
demand-risk and these have been impacted, for example, following a significant fall in travel as a result of the pandemic. In
its assessment of the Group's financial resources, the directors are not currently forecasting to receive any distributions in
2020 from the demand-risk projects.

After making the assessment on going concern, the directors considered it appropriate to prepare the financial statements of
the Company on a going concern basis, having considered the impact of Covid 19 on its oparations and on its investments.
The Company has sufficient financial resources and liquidity in the current economic environment to continue operations
and remain within its borrowing covenants for a period of at least 12 months from the date of this report. Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements.
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Accounting policies (continued)

Method of consolidation — subsidiaries

On acquisition of a business, all the business’ assets and liabilities that exist at the date of acquisition are recorded at their
fair values. Initially, provisional fair values are allocated and these are finalised within twelve months of the date of control.
All changes to those assets and liabilities and resulting gains and losses that arise after the Group has gained control of the
subsidiary are charged to the post acquisition statement of comprehensive income. The purchase consideration is measured
as the fair value of the assets given up or liabilities undertaken plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Goodwill
is the excess purchase consideration over the fair value of the identiftable assets and liabilities acquired.

Subsidiaries are enterprises that are controlled by the Group over which it typically has in excess of 50% of the voting
rights. The Group consolidates the results of the company and its subsidiaries. Subsidiary acquisitions are accounted for
using the acquisition method of accounting. All inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group entities have been eliminated in full.

Fair value adjustments which are made at the date of acquisition are amortised on a straight line basis over the period of
the life of the underlying asset.

Uniform accounting policies are applied across all subsidiaries within the Group.

Method of consolidation — associates and joint ventures

Investments in associates and joint ventures are consolidated using the equity method. In arriving at the amounts to be
included by the equity method, the same accounting policies as those of BIIF Holdco Limited are applied. Where
practicable, associatcs and joint venturcs arc included on the basis of financial statements prepared for a period not more
than three months before the Group’s year end. Where the associate’s or joint venture’s accounting reference date is greater
than due wonths prior to 31 December, the associates are consolidated based on the latest statutory accounts adjusted for
management accounts to 31 December.

Associatcs arc cnterprises, other than joint ventures, that are not controlled by the Group, over which the Group generally
has between 20% and 50% of the voting rights, or over which the Group has significant influence.

All balances and effects of transactions between each associate and joint venture and the Group have been eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate and joint venture.

Judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported. These estimates and judgments are continually reviewed and are based on experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant judgments

The judgments (apart from those involving estimations) that management has made in the process of applying the entity's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as

follows:
i Revaluation of investment properties .

The Group carries its investment property at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The aggregate surplus or deficit is transferred to or from a revaluation reserve except where a
deficit is deemed to represent a permanent impairment in the value of the property, in which event it is charged to the
statement of comprehensive income. The Group engaged independent valuation specialists to determine fair value at 6
December 2019 (residential property) and 31 January 2020 (commercial property). Both valuations relate to the year ended
31 December 2019. The valuer used a valuation technique based on a discounted cash flow model as there is a lack of
compatable market data because of the nature of the property. The determined fair value of the investment property is most
sensitive to the estimated yield as well as the long term vacancy rate. The key assumptions used to determine the fair value
of investment property are further explained in note 7.
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Accounting policies (continued)
Significant judgments (continued)
ii) Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences at the reperting date except for certain exceptions, Judgments are
required to be made as to the calculation and identification of timing differences and in the case of the recognition of
deferred taxation assets, the directors have to form an opinion as to whether it is probable that the deferred taxation asset
recognised is recoverable against future taxable profits arising. This exercise of judgment requires the directors to consider
forecast information over a long time horizon having regard to the risks that the forecasts may not be achieved and then
form a reasonable opinion as to the recoverability of the deferred taxation asset.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Accounting estimates and assumptions are made concerning the future and, by their nature, will rarely equal the related
actual outcome. The key assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are as follows:

i) Impairment of assets

The carrying value of those assets recorded on the Group's statement of financial position at amortised cost could be
materially reduced if the value of those assets were assessed to have been impaired. Impairment reviews are performed in
the event that circumstances change which might indicate that an asset has been impaired. In principle, such impairment
reviews consider the fair value and or value in use of the potentially impaired asset or assets and compates that with the
carrying value of the asset or assets on the statement of financial position. Any reduction in value arising from such a
review would be recorded in the income statement. Impairment reviews involve the significant use of assumptions.
Consideration has to be given as to the price that could be obtained for the asset or assets, or in relation to a consideration
of value in use, estimates of the future cash flows that could be generated by the potentially impaired asset or assets,
together with a consideration of an appropriate discount rate to apply to those cash flows.

ii) Accounting for service concession agreements

Accounting for the service concession contraots and finance debtors requires estimation of service margins, finance debtor
interest rates and associated amortisation profiles which are based on forecast results of the contracts.

Taxation

Taxation expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting period. Tax is recognised
in the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.

i) Current tax

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxahle profit for the year or prior years Tax is calculated
on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the period end. The directors
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

i) Deferred tax

Deferred tax arises from timing differences that are differences between taxable profits and total comprehensive income as
stated in the financial statements. These timing differences arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax
assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in financial statements.

Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences at the reporting date except for certain exceptions. Unrelieved tax losses
and other deferred tax assets are only recognised when it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of
deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the period end and
that ate expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

Turnover

Turnover represents the services share of the management services income received by the Group for the provision of a
PFI asset to the customer. This income is received over the life of the concession period. Management service income is
allocated between revenue and reimbursement of finance debtor so as to generate a constant rate of return in respect of the
finance debtor over the life of the contract,

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as income when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Foreign currencies

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. The assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiary undertakings are
translated into the presentational currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date. Income
and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at exchange rates at the dates of transaction. All
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income,

Accounting for PFI assets

The Group has taken the transition exemption in FRS 102 Section 35.10(i) that allows the Group to continue the service
concession arrangement accounting policies from previous UK GAAP.

i. Finance debtor
The Group is accounting for the concession asset based on the ability to substantially transfer all the risks and rewards of

ownership to the customer, with this arrangement the costs incurred by the Group on the design and construction of the
assets have been treated as a finance debtor within these financial statements.

ii. Tangible fixed assets

The Group is accounting for the concession asset based on the inability to substantially transfer all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the customer, with this arrangement the costs incurred by the Group on the design and construction of the
assets have been treated as a fixed asset within these financial statements.
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BITF Holdco Limited
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019
Accounting policies (continued)

Accounting for PFI assets (continued)

iii. Investment properties

Investment properties are accounted for in accordance with FRS 102 Section 16 ‘Investment Property’. Investment
properties are revalued every two to three ycars by an cxternal qualified and registered property valuer and every other year
the directors assess the carrying value in light of any changes in market conditions. The aggregate surplus or deficit is
charged to the income statement; and no amortisation is provided in respect of {ong leasehold investment properties.

Depreciation

On completion (date on which an availability certificate is issued), depreciation is charged on buildings on a straight line
basis to the income statement over the useful economic life of each asset. The annual rates applied to each class of asset

are:
Buildings concession period 25 to 35 years — 2.9% to 4.0% straight line
Equipment concession period 25 to 29 years straight line
short life assets 3-4 years straight line and 12.5% — 33% reducing balance
Impairment

All asgsets, including financial assets, are reviewed for impairment annually at the reporting date. Where an indicator of
impairment or objective evidence exists, an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount is made. An impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets arc grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets. This is at the individual project company level within the Group.

Government grants

Grants which relate to specific capital expenditure are accounted for using the accrual model. These are initially treated as
deferred income and subsequently released to the income statement on a straight line basis over the asset’s useful economic
life. Other grants are recognised in the income statement when any associated performance conditions are met,

Deferred income

Deferred income also includes capital contributions towards the construction of fixed assets from the public sector
counterparty on certain projects completed by the Group. These are accounted for using the accrual model and released to
the income statement on a straight line basis over the life of the related asset.

Capital instruments

Shares are included in shareholder funds, Debt instruments, which contain an obligation to repay, are classified as liabilities.
The finance costs recognised in the income statement in respect of capital instruments, other than shares, are allocated to
periods over the operating life of the instrument to which they relate at a constant carrying amount in accordance with FRS

102 section 22.

24



BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised only when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at the transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing
transaction, where it is recognised at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a

similar debt instrument.
Debt instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Other financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, with any changes recognised in the income statement,
with the exception of hedging instruments in a designated hedging relationship.

Financial assets that are measured at cost or amortised cost are reviewed for objective evidence of impairment at the end
of each reporting date. If there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement immediately.

For all equity instruments regardless of significance, and other financial assets that are individually significant, these are
assessed individually for impairment. Other financial assets are either assessed individually or grouped on the basis of
similar credit risk characteristics.

Any reversals of impairment are recognised in profit or loss immediately, to the extent that the reversal does not result in
a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not
previously been recognised.

Hedge accounting

Some entities in the Group have entered into an arrangement with third parties that is designed to hedge future cash flows
arising on variable rate interest loan arrangements, with the net effect of exchanging the cash flows arising under those
arrangements for a stream of fixed interest cash flows ("interest rate swaps"). Some entities have also entered into an
arrangement with third parties that is designed to hedge future cash receipts arising from its principal activity (RPI swaps).
These entities have designated that these arrangements are a hedge of another (non-derivative) financial instrument, to
mitigate the impact of potential volatility on the Group's net cash flows.

To qualify for hedge accounting, documentation is prepared specifying the hedging strategy, the component transactions
and methodology used for effectiveness measurement. Changes in the carrying value of financial instruments that are
designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows ("cash flow hedges") are recognised directly in a hedging reserve
in equity and any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Amounts deferred in equity in
respect of cash flow hedges are subsequently recognised in the income statement in the same period in which the hedged
item affects net profit or loss or the hedging relationship is terminated and the underlying position being hedged has been

extinguished.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce

the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the ¢apital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is
provided. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to a reduction in
future payments or a cash refund.
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Accounting policies (continued)
Company

Disclosure exemptions

The Company satisfies the criteria of being a qualifying entity as defined in FRS 102. As such, advantage has been taken

of the following disclosure exemptions available under paragraph 1.12 of FRS 102:

(a) No cash flow statement has been presented for the Company.

(b) The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 33 of FRS 102 'Related Party Disclosures’, that allows

it not to disclose transactions with wholly owned members of a group.

Turnover

The turnover and profit before tax are attributable to the one principal activity of the Group and arise entirely from

continuing operations. An analysis of revenue is given below:

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000
United Kingdom 341,052 325,148
Other European Union 8,893 7,850
Total revenue 349,945 332,998
Interest and similar items
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000
Interest payable
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts (70,812) (75,302)
Interest payable on Eurcbond (50,241) (50,241)
Interest on long term bond (8,773) (10,004)
Total interest payable and similar items (129,826} (135,547)
Interest receivable
Bank interest receivable 2,025 918
Other interest receivable 4,474 6,878
Finance debtor interest receivable 38,435 47,662
Total interest receivable 44,934 55,458
Net interest payable and similar items (84,892) {80,089)

26
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4, Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Amortisation of fair value adjustments

Gain on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Gain on disposal of investment properties
Gain on revaluation of investment properties
Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Other pension costs

Fees payable to the Company auditor for the audit of the parent company, subsidiary
companies and consolidated accounts (parent company: 2019: £4K 2018: £4K)

Fees payable to the company auditor for other services
- Audit-related services
- Tax compliance and advisory services

31 Dec 2019
£000

22,266
30,221
17,399
561
9,185
6,361
777
740

974

3
164

31 Dec 2018
£000

22,140
30,221

103
16,269
5,923
677
575

802

3
133

Within the Group, the number of monthly average employees in the financial year other than the directors was 89 (2018:

83).

None of the directors of the Company received any remuneration from the Group during the year (2018: £nil). Attention
is drawn to the payments made to certain directors of subsidiary undertakings disclosed in note 19.

5. Results of helding company

A Company profit of £2,135K (2018: loss of £1,604K) is dealt with by the group accounts of BHF Holdco Limited. The
directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and have not

presented a Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Company.
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6. Taxation

Current tax
UK corporation tax on profit for the year
Adjustments in respect of prior periods for subsidiary companies

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences

Adjustments in respect of prior periods for subsidiary companies
Impact of change in tax rate

Total deferred tax credit

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000

10,614 11,818
(663) (4,272)

9,951 7.546
(1,038) 443

- 28

431 (127)

{607) 344

9.344 7,890

The tax assessed for the year is lower than (2018: lower than) the standard rate applying in the UK (19.00%) (2018:

19.00%). The differences are explained below:

Group profit on ordinary activities before tax

Profit on ordinary activities at the UK tax rate 19.00% (2018: 19.00%)

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Losses utilised

Adjustment in respect of prior year tax charge
Non-trading transfer pricing adjustment
Group relief not paid

Effect of rate change

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

28

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000
38,874 42,798
7,386 8,132
653 1,361
(2.856) (1,647)
(663) (4,244)
4,394 4,394

- 21

430 (127)
9,344 7,890
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7. Tangible fixed assets - Group
Buildings Equipment Total
£000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation
As at 1 January 2019 435,391 132,202 567,593
Additions - 125 125
Disposals (27,117) 9) (27,126)
Foreign exchange translation adjustment - (2,908) (2,908)
As at 31 December 2019 408,274 129,410 537,684
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2019 168,019 68,683 236,702
Charge for the period 16,014 6,252 22,266
Disposals (1,716) - (1,716)
Foreign exchange translation adjustment - (1,049) (1,049)
As at 31 December 2019 182,317 73,886 256,203
Net book value
As at 31 December 2019 225,957 55,524 281,481
As at 31 December 2018 267.372 63,519 330.891

Interest charged to the income statement included within the depreciation charge is £640K (2018: £573K).
Interest capitalised to date, included in cost, totals £22,741K (2018; £23,175K).
Company

The Company had no fixed assets at 31 December 2019 (2018: none).

Land &
Investment properties - Group Buildings
£000

Cost or valuation
As at 1 January 2019 82,885
Disposals (7,130)
Revaluation 9,185
As at 31 December 2019 84,940

The Group holds residential and commercial investment properties.

The residential investment properties were revalued in December 2019 by RICS Registered valuers, on behalf of Cushman
and Wakefield (UK) LLP. The basis of valuation was to compare recent arm’s length transactions in respect of market rent
and market value, together with an external inspection of all properties from adjacent public roads and footpaths, The
directors are satisfied this represents an accurate carrying value against current market conditions. When assessing the
valuation the following assumptions have been made:

A) Market Value increased by 8% since the previous valuation in 2017
B) Average property value of £249,392,
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Investment properties — Group (continued)

The commercial investment property was revalued using a market approach on a vacant possession basis in January 2020
by David Ingham a member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors on behalf of CBRE. The valuation has been
recognised in the financial statements to 31 December 2019. When earrying out the valuation the following assumptions
have been made:

A) An equivalent yield of 6.05%

B) A reversionary yield of 6.95%

C) Capital value of £4,028.86 per sq m (£374.29 per sq f1)

Company

The Company had no investment properties at 31 December 2019 (2018: none).

8. Investments

The Group had no fixed asset investments at 31 December 2019 (2018: none)

Company
Investments

Total

£000

Cost
As at 1 January 2019 38,078
Additions -
Capital repayment (314)
As at 31 December 2019 37,764
Impairment
As at 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 -
Carrying amount
As at 31 December 2019 37,764
As at 31 December 2018 38,078

Subsidiaries, associates and other investments

The Company owns 100% of the issued share capital of BIIF Heldco II Limited. The investment is held at cost.
The Company also owns 100% of the issued share capital of BIIF Issuerco Limited. The investment is held at cost £1
(2018: £1).
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9. Investments — Group

Interests in joint ventures and associates

Loans to
Joint joint Loans to
ventures Associates ventures associates Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
As at | January 2019 86,360 69,875 156,138 18,883 331,256
Additions - - 879 - 879
Share of retained profits 29.836 9,191 - - 39,027
Dividends receivable (20,096) (9,169) - - (29,265)
Movement on hedge reserve 10,036 794 - - 10,830
Foreign exchange movement (130) 63 (624) - (691)
Repayment of loan - - (1,873) (1,607) (3,480)
As at 31 December 2019 106,006 70,754 154,520 17,276 348,556
The following additional information is provided in respect of equity accounted investments:
Share of Share of Share of Share of
Share of non- current current non-current current Share of
Revenue assets assets liabilities liabilities net assets
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
31 December 2019
Joint ventures 146,016 1,470,478 226,728 1,339,007 97,673 260,526
Associates 58,507 251,134 88,999 205,129 46,974 88,030
31 December 2018
Joint ventures 144,021 1,531,389 216,579 1,405,557 99913 242,498
Associates 58,173 276,389 89,493 229,551 47,573 88,758

Investments in Group undertakings are stated at amortised cost and are listed in note 24 and 25. The directors consider that
to give full particulars of all subsidiaries would lead to a statement of excessive length.

The Group accounts for an investment as an associate when it has significant influence but not control. This is typically
demonstrated when the Group nominates one or more directors to the board of the investment. Where the shareholder
agreements stipulate that all shareholders with board representation must consent to the approval of key matters the Group
designates the investment 1o be a joint venture, even if the equity holding is not 50%.
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10. Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Group Company Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade debtors 18,535 15,710 - -
Finance debtor 44,157 44,252 - -
Sub participation amounts due (note 11} 13,798 12,827 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 48,891 45,359 - -
Other debtors 36,267 20,035 1,410 723
161,648 138,183 1,410 723

Refer to note 22 for further information in relation to credit risk exposure in the Group.

11. Debtors: amounts falling due after one year

Group Group Company Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Sub participation amounts due 156,939 170,693 - -
Finance debtor 893,404 949,857 - -
Derivative financial instruments 45,134 45,806 - .
Deferred tax asset (note 15) 53,950 55,141 - -
1,149,427 1,221,497 - -

Sub participation amounts due represents debt due from the bank, arising from a sub-participation agreement between the
bank and a subsidiary company (PFI Senior Funding Limited) dated 28 July 2011. These loans are secured by a fixed and
floating charge over all the assets, rights and undertakings of the individual project companies. Each project has an
individual repayment profile with the final payment being settled at the end of each project concession.

12. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Group Company Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade creditors 12,131 18,256 - -
Other creditors 18,014 17,011 - 1,762
Accruals 106,611 106,568 - -
Corporation tax 14,121 5,756 - -
Other taxes and social security costs 7,016 6,963 - -
Bank loans and overdrafts (note 13(a)) 154,686 133,271 - -
Guaranteed secured bonds (note 13(c)) 6,206 6,402 - -
Other loans (note 13(d)) 1,987 2,167 - -
Deferred income (note 13(g)) 2,052 3,327 - -
322,824 299,721 - 1,762
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13. Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

Group Group Company Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafts (note 13(a)) 1,047,504 1,139,266 - -
Eurobond {note 13(b)) 628,020 628,020 38,078 38,078
Guaranteed secured bonds (note 13(c)) 125,441 130,456 - -
Zero Coupon Bond (note 13(d)) 5,552 5,035 - -
Other loans (note 13(e)) 4,688 6,056 - -
Other creditors (note 13(f)) 11,889 12,957 - -
Deferred income (note 13(g)) 41,745 44,379 - -
1,864,839 1,966,169 38,078 38,078

The repayment of bank and other loans is due as follows:
Group 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000
Due within one year 156,674 135,438
Due in two to five years 536,272 205,265
Due in over five years 515,919 940,057
1,208,865 1,280,760

Company

The Company did not have any bank or other loans at 31 December 2019 (2018: none).

Group

{a) Bank loans

The total amount drawn down under bank loans at the year-end was £1,225,520K (2018: £1,298,439K). Costs of £23,330K
(2018: £25,901K) have been set off against the total loan drawdowns, with £3,166K (2018: £3,468K) of these debited to
the income statement in the year.

An amount of £693,819K (2018: £772,549K) relates to two senior banking facilities. The first facility of £278,120K (2018:
£284,900K) relates to the finance of 18 PFI projects and it expires on 30 September 2035, The Group has entered into
interest rate swap arrangements and under these arrangements the Group receives interest on a variable basis and pays
interest at a fixed rate of 8.55%. The facilities are secured against the cash flows from the Group’s equity and loan
investments. The second facility is split into two parts Facility A £429,336K (2018: £445,674K) which expires on 31
December 2025, and Facility B £39,284K (2018: £41,975K) which is scheduled to be fully repaid by 31 December 2035.
The [oan facilities have principal payments due on a six-monthly basis. In February 2020 Facilities A and B were refinanced
into a new total facility level of £600m. This new facility is split into 3 and fully amortises in 2037,

The Group has interest rate swap arrangements and under these arrangements the Group receives interest on a variable
basis and also pays interest at 7.008%. Facility B has a fixed lending rate of 4.182%. The facilities are secured against the
cash flows from the Group’s equity and loan investments.

The remaining facilities relate to borrowings held by individual project subsidiary companics and they arc secured by way

of fixed and floating charges over the assets of the specific project company which holds the borrowings. Maturity of these
facilities ranges from 2016 to 2035. Interest payable on the Group’s bank loans ranges from rates of 5.11% to 7.99%.

33



BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019

13.

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year (continued)

(b) Eurobond

A subsidiary in the Group has issued a Eurobond, listed on the Channel Islands Securities Exchange, totalling £589,942K
(2018: £589,942K) which was subscribed for in full by the ultimate parent entity, BIIF LP. This Eurobond bears interest
at 8% per annum and falls due for repayment on 31 December 2045,

The Company has issued a Eurobond, listed on the Channel Islands Securities Exchange totalling £38 078K (2018:
£38,078K) which was subscribed for in full by the ultimate parent entity, BIIF LP. This Eurobond bears interest at 8% per
annum and falls due for repayment on 31 December 2045,

(c) Secured bonds

A subsidiary has issued, at par value, £82,198K (2018: £83,422K) 3.443% index-linked guaranteed secured bonds due
2004-2036. The bond is secured by way of a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the subsidiary and two immediate
holding companies. Both the interest and principal balances are adjusted for the increase in the Retail Price Index at six
monthly intervals, which cumulatively at 31 December 2019 amounted to 71.31% (2018: 73.06%).

A subsidiary has issued £45,659K (2018: £49,450) 7.12% secured bonds which are due 2028. The bond is secured by way
of a fixed and floating charge over the assets of the subsidiary.

The maturity profile of all bonds is as follows:
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018

£000 £000

Amounts repayable in one year or less or on demand 6,287 6,483
Amounts falling due within one to five years 71,758 31,313
Amounts falling due after five years 688,042 732,967
766,086 770,763

Unamortised finance costs assaciated with the bond issue (867) (849)
765,219 769,914

Included within creditors: amounts falling due within one year (6,206) (6,402)
Amounts falling due after one year 759,013 763,512

(d) Zero coupon bond

A subsidiary company has issued a zero coupon bond with a redemption value of £8,000K (2018: £8,000K) on 3 October
2022. This bond was issued at a discount value of £633K which is amortised to maturity at a constant rate on the carrying
amount of the debt.

(e} Other loans (all unsecured)

A subsidiary in the Group has issued loan notes totalling £1,250K (2018: £1,192K) which bear interest at 13.5%. Of this
balance, £963K (2018: £905K) represents unpaid interest on the loan notes and is due for payment within twelve months.
The balance falls due for payment on 31 March 2032.

A subsidiary in the Group has issued a £59K (2018: £52K) loan stock instrument. The loan bears a Coupon of 13.5% per
annum and payment of capital falls due in the year 2035, The Coupon on the principal amount accrues daily and is payable
on 30 September and 31 March each year. The amount is charged to the income statement as interest falls payable, The
sum was advanced under a subordinated loan agreement and is, therefore, unsecured and would rank alongside ordinary
creditors in the event of a winding up.
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13.

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year (continued)

The same subsidiary also issued a £153K (2018: £146K) subordinated loan note issued at a price of 20 pence for each £1
in nominal value of loan stock held. The loan bears a Coupon of 13.5% per annum and payment of capital falls due in the
year 2035. The Coupon on the principal amount accrues daily and is payable on 30 September and 31 March each year,
The sums were advanced under a subordinated loan agreement and rank alongside ordinary creditors but above the loan
stock detailed above in the event of a winding up.

The same subsidiary also issued a £267K (2018: £267K) subordinated loan note. The loan bears a Coupon of 13.5% per
annum and payment of capital falls due in the year 2035. The Coupon on the principal amount accrues daily and is payable
on 30 September and 31 March each year. The sums were advanced under a subordinated loan agreement and rank
alongside ordinary creditors but above the loan stock detailed above in the event of a winding up.

A subsidiary in the Group has issued an unsecured loan with a value of £685K (2018: £736K) due 2037, bearing interest
at 13.04%.

During the year a subsidiary in the Group scttled in full its issued loan stock (2018: £283K).

A subsidiary in the Group has issued loan stock with a value of £715K (2018: £715K) bearing interest at 13% per annum.
Of this balance, £64K (2018: £64K) represents unpaid interest on the loan notes and is due for payment within twelve
months. The principal is repayable in full in February 2036.

During the year a subsidiary in the Group settled in full its issued loan stock (2018: £453K).
A subsidiary in the Group has issued loan stock with a value of £3,342K (2018: £4,070K). The loan stock bears interest at
the rate per annum determined by the lender which will be calculated according to the aggregate of margin, LIBOR, and

mandatory costs. The debt is repayable in 41 consecutive six monthly instalments, the first of which was repaid in August
2002 with the final instalment due on 31 August 2023.

A subsidiary in the Group has issued loan stock with a value of £205K (2018: £309K). The loan stock bears interest at
8.5%.

() Other creditors
Included in other creditors is a decommissioning provision of £555K (2018: £505K) which provides for the future costs of

decommissioning a wind farm. The provision has been discounted at an annual rate of 4% and this discount is charged to
the statement of comprehensive income until 2027, the estimated date of decommissioning.
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13.

14.

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year (continued)

() Deferred income
Group

As at 1 January
Amortised during the period

Foreign exchange translation adjustment

As at 31 December

31 Dec2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000

47,706 51,695
(2,844) (3,657
(1,066) (332)
43,797 47,706

Deferred income is divided as follows:

In 14 projects, on completion of construction of the facilities, the public sector client made payments to the respective
project companies (Eastbrook Facilities Limited, Covesea Limited, GH Newham Limited, GH Bodmin Limited, Kintra
Limited, Bannockburn Homes Limited, KE Project Limited, LH Project Limited, Machrie Limited, NewSchools
(Penweddig) Limited, Connect A50 Limited, Infrastructure Investors Castlehill Limited, Blackshaw Healthcare
Services Limited and Adams Campus Limited) as a contribution to the capital cost of the works. These contributions
were deferred and will be amortised over the life of the project. The balance as at 31 December 2019 was £22,417K
(2018: £23,557K).

£7,611K (2018: £8,838K) in respect of funding grants which will be amortised over the lifetime of the PFI concession
contract.

£4,164K (2018: £4,504K) received following the arrangement of an RPI SWAP which will be amortised over the
lifetime of the contract.

£9,605K (2018: £10,807K) in respect of asset renewal underspend.

Ofthe balance at the year-end, it is expected that £2,052K (2018: £3,327K) will be realised within 12 months and £41,745K
(2018: £44,379K) will be realised after 12 months.

(h) Amounts due to subsidiary undertaking

The amount due to subsidiary undertaking is a trading balance, is non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Derivative financial instruments

Group Group Company Company
31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Liabilities
Interest rate swaps 369,718 373,016 - -
RPI swaps 95,995 110,141 - -
465,713 483,157 - -
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15.

16.

Deferred taxation

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
Group £000 £000
As at | January (4,335) 940
Adjustment in respect of prior year deferred tax charge 10 (604)
Revised balance as at | Janvary (4,345) 336
Movement through other comprehensive income 332 (4,327)
Deferred tax charge/(credit) for the year 613 (344)
As at 31 December (3,400) (4,335)
Analysis of deferred tax balances:
Accelerated capital allowances (62,303) (65,699)
Derivatives 39,297 55,613
Other timing differences 11,934 (7,372)
Losses 7,672 13,123
(3.400} (4,335)
Deferred tax asset 53,950 55,141
Deferred tax liability (57,350) (59,476)
(3,400) (4,335)

The Group has an un-provided deferred tax asset of £14,743K (2018: £16,923K). The deferred tax asset arises on unrelieved
losses within certain Group companies. This asset would be recoverable if the Group companies made sufficient taxable
profits in future periods against which the losses could be offset.

Called up share capital
Group and Company 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec2018
£ £
Authorised
100 Ordinary shares of £1 each 100 100
Issued, called up and fully paid
1 Ordinary share of £1 each 1 1

There is a single class of ordinary share. There are no restrictione on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of
capital. ‘ ’
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17. Net cash flow from operating activities

Reconciliation of profit to net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities 31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000

Operating profit 80,205 61,678
Revaluation of investment property (9,185) {16,269)
Gain on sale of the investment property (561) (104)
Gain on sale of the tangible fixed assets (17,399) -
Depreciation charge 22,266 22,140
Amortisation of fair value adjustments 15,787 15,787
Amortisation of deferred income (3,909) (3,939)
Foreign exchange 2,550 (671)
Decrease in debtors 21,967 30,792
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors (1,746) 19,791
Net cash inflow from operating activities 109,976 129,155

8. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
Non- cash

1 Jan 2019 Cash flow movements 31 Dec 2019
£000 000 E4]1111] £000

Cash in hand and at bank 239,260 25,426 - 264,686
Debt payable: within one year (141,840} (21,039) - (162,879)
Debt payable: after one year (1,921,790) 112,908 (14,212) (1,823,094)
(2,063,630) 91,869 (14,212) (1,985,973)

Loan payments: receivable within one year 12,827 971 - 13,798
Loan payments: receivable after one year 170,693 (13,754) - 156,939
183,520 (12,783 - 170,737

Total (1,640,850) 104,512 (14,212) (1,550,550)

The non-cash movements are in respect of effective interest rate charges.

19. Events after the End of the Reporting Period

Coronavirus was declared a pandemic in March 2020 and since then there has been widespread disruption in the UK. As
the pandemic accelerated after the year end this event has been classified as a non-adjusting post balance sheet event, As
disclosed in the Strategic Report, the directors have considered the future financial impact to the Company of the
Coronavirus pandemic. Although the likely full impact is unknown, it is expected to be minimal.

20. Related party transactions

The Group paid £46K (2018: £44K) to the Sodexo Group for the services of the Sodexo employees as directors to HpC
King’s College Hospital (Holdings) Limited, a subsidiary of the Group in which Sodexo hold a minority interest. At 31
December 2019, £nil (2018: £nil) remained outstanding.

Sodexe Group also manage the non-clinical services for HpC Kings College Hospital (Holdings) Limited, a subsidiary of

the Group in which the Sodexo Group hold a minority interest. The amount charged for these services was £nil (201 8: £nil).
At 31 December 2019, £9K (2018: £9K) remained outstanding.
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20.

21.

22,

Related party transactions (continued)

Sodexo Group also manage the lifecycle and estate services for HpC Kings College Hospital (Holdings) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group in which the Sodexo Group hold a minority interest. The amount charged for these services was
£1,491K (2018: £1,442K). At 31 December 2019, £nil (2018; £nil) remained outstanding.

A director of Innovate East Lothian Limited during the period is also a director of FES Limited. FES Limited is the holder
of loan notes issued by Innovate East Lothian Limited totalling £420K (2018: £413K)} and loan notes issued by Innovate
East Lothian (Holdings) Limited totalling £59K (2018: £52K).

The Group has subcontracted the design, build, operation and maintenance of Alert Communications Group Holdings
Limited to Babcock Communications Limited, a company which, through an intermediary holding company, holds a
minority interest in Alert Communications Group Holdings Limited. During the year Alert Communications Limited was
invoiced £3,662K (2018: £1,540K) by Babcock Communications Limited in connection with operation and maintenance
fees. At 31 December 2019, £409K (2018: £363K) remained outstanding.

Veolia manage the operational activities of Catchment Limited, Catchment Moray Limited and Catchment Tay Limited,
subsidiaries of the Group in which Veolia Group hold a minority interest. The total invoices raised in the year in respect of
these services amounted to £16,277K (2018: £12,928K). At 31 December 2019, £3.073K (2018: £3,147K) remained

outstanding.

Balfour Beatty Investments Limited, a subsidiary of Balfour Beatty plc, is employed under a Secondment Arrangement with
Connect A50 Limited for the provision of managerial staff. The value of'the services provided in the year was £307K (2018:
£309K). At 31 December 2019, £nilK (2018: £25K) remained outstanding.

Balfour Beatty Infrastructure Services Limited, a subsidiary of Balfour Beatty plc, is employed under a coniract with
Connect A50 Limited for the provision of technical supervision and maintenance of a roadway. The value of the contract in
the year was £6,716K (2018 £5,390K). At 31 December 2019, £520K (2018: £433K) remained outstanding,.

The Group has subcontracted the design, build, operation and maintenance of Societe Des Bus Hybrids Dijonnais to Heuliez
Bus, a company which holds a minority interest in Societe Des Bus Hybrids Dijonnais. During the year Societe Des Bus
Hybrids Dijonnais was invaiced £334K (2018: £523K) by Heuliez Bus for these services. At 31 December 2019, £91K
(2018: £59K) remained outstanding.

The Group has subcontracted the design, build, operation and maintenance of Helios B to Engie Group, a company which
holds a minority interest in Helios B. Engie Group also receives a reimbursement of the costs of a corporate guarantee.

During the year Helios B was invoiced £2,548K (2018: £2,597K) by Engie Group in connection with these services. At 31
December 2019 £1,033K (2018: £446K) remained outstanding.

Parent undertaking and ultimate controlling party

The ultimate parent and controlling entity is BIIF LP, BIIF LP is owned by a number of investors, with no one investor
having individual control.

Pension

A subsidiary of the Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its employees.
The amount recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income was:

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018
£000 £000

Current year contributions 740 575
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23.

Financial instruments

{a) Carrying amount of financial instruments

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018

£000 £000

Assets measured at amortised cost 1,219,042 1,325,000
Assets measured at cost less impairment 348,556 331,256
Assets measured at fair value 45,134 45,806
Liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss (465,713) (483,157)
Liabilities measured as amortised cost (1,974,084) (2,050,674)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value
Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of interest rate swaps is based on valuations provided by the swap counterparties. Those valuations are tested for
reasonableness by discounting estimated future cash flows based on the terms and maturity of each contract and using market
interest rates for a similar instrument at the measurement date.

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, where applicable are based on market interest rates.

The fair value of RPI swaps is based on valuations provided by the swap counterparties. Those valuations are tested for
reasonableness by discounting catimated future cash flows based on the terms and maturity of cach contract and using market
forecast inflation rates.

The amount of change in fair valug attributable to own credit risk cannot be measured reliability.
The derivative contracts used by the Group are typical for PFI projecis. Whete projects are debi-funding, interest on the loan is
calculated by reference to a floating rate. Interest rate swaps hedge Libor fluctuations and mitigate the risk that debt interest costs

will fluctuate as Libor fluctuates, The full amount of the senior debt service payment is hedged in this way.

RPI swaps arc wsed to hedge fluctuations in the inflation index which is relevant for the project. Low inflation would otherwise
cause a shortfall in cash with which to make senior debt service payments. RPI swaps are structured in such a way to ensure that
any volatility in cash flow for senior debt service that could arise due to inflation fluctuations is effectively neutralized.

Interest rate swaps and RPI swaps, where used, are conditions imposed on the PFI project company by the senior debt provider
to ensure stability in cash flows.

{c) Hedge accounting

The following table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with cash flow hedging instruments are expected to
occur and affect profit and loss as required by FRS 102.29(a) for the cash flow hedge accounting models:
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23. Financial instruments (continued)
Carrying Expected 1 year orless 1 year or more
amount cash flows
£000 £000 £000 £000

Period ended
31 December 2019
Interest rate swaps:
Assets 45,134 45,134 - 45,134
Liabilities (369,718) (369,718) (47,917) (321,801)
RPI swaps:
Liabilities (95,99%) (95,995) (12,441) (83,554)
Period ended
31 December 2018
Interest rate swaps:
Assets 45,806 45,306 - 45,806
Liabilities (373,016) (373,016) (39.446) (333,570)
RPI swaps:
Liabilities (110,141) (110,141) (11,647) (98,494)

The Group applies hedge accounting in accordance with FRS102.12.

Interest rate swaps are used as a hedging instrument again a floating rate loans as the hedged item. RPI swaps are used as a
hedging instrument against that portion of unitary payment receipts which are required to make periodic senior debt service

payments.

Fair value of these hedging instruments are reported in note 23(d), The amount of the change in fair value of the hedging
instruments recognised in other comprehensive income for the period and the amount that was recycled to profit or loss for the
year are shown in the statement of consolidated other comprehensive income.

(d) Fair values

The amounts for all financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value are as follows:

Fair value Fair value

31 Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018

£000 £000

Interest rate swap contracts (369,718) (327,210)
RPI swap contracts (95,995) (110,141)

During 2019, a hedging gain of £10,157K (2018: £20,421K) was recognised in other comprehensive income for changes in the
fair value of the interest rate swap together with a gain of £4,533K (2018: £27,728K) recognised in the profit and loss for the

financial year.
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24, Investments in Subsidiaries

The companies listed below are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and all investments are in ordinary shares:

Registered Office -Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6AF

A-Roads Investments Limited
Adams Campus Limited

AM Holdco Limited

Anavon Holdings Limited

Anavon Limited

BIIF Bidco Limited

Blackshaw Healthcare Services Holdings Limited
Blackshaw Healthcare Services Ltd

BIIF Holdco II Limited

BIIF Holdco HI Limited

BIIF IssuerCo Limited

BIIF Parentco Limited

CH Bolton Limited

CH Holton (Holdings) Limited
Cricketdrift Limited

Defence Management Group (Holdings) Limited
Defence Management (Holdings) Limited
Defence Management (Watchfield) Limited
Duchesspark Holdings Limited
Duchesspark Limited

Durham Investments Holdco Limited
Eastbrook Facilities Holdings 2 Limited
Eastbrook Facilities Holdings Limited
Eastbrook Facilitigs Limited

Elbon Holdings (1} Limited

Elbon Holdings (2) Limited

Elbon Holdings (3) Limited

Elbon PFI Fund (Investments) Limited
ERI Holdings Limited

Grannag Limited

GH Bodmin Holdings Limited

GH Bodmin Limited

GH Bury Holdings Limited

GH Bury Limited

GH Newham Holdings Limited

GH Newham Limited

HSC Investments Limited

12 Bidco Limited

12 Holdco 2 Limited

12 Holdco Limited

Infrastructure investors Castlehitl Holdings Limited
Infrastructure Investors Castlehill Limited
International Water (Highland) Limited
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24, Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

International Water (Tay) Limited

Investment Holdings (Genistics) Limited

WL Maray Montrese Limited

IWUUHH Limited

Kilmarnock PFI Holdings Limited

Kilmarnock Prison Services Limited

Kinnoull House Holdings Limited

Kintra Limited

Lanterndew Limited

Lowdham Grange Prison Services Limited
Luton Health Facilities (Holdings) Limited
Luton Health Facilities Limited

M1-Al Investments Limited

MI1-Al Yorkshire Limited

Machrie Burn Limited

Machrie Limited

Mateix FPMS Holdings Limited

Matrix FPMS Limited

Matrix PFI Deveiopments Limited

Matrix PFI GP Limited

Matrix PFI Holdings Limated

Matrix Premier Holdings Limited

Moreton Prison Services Limited

Newmount Holdings Limited

Newmount Limited

Newschools (Penweddig) Holdings Limited
Newschools (Penweddig) Limited

Normanby Healthcare Group Holdings Limited
Normanby Healthcare (Holdings) Limited
Normanby Healthcare (Projects) Limited
Nuffield Albion Healthcare Limited

NVSH TopCo Limited

PFI Infrastructure Finance Limited

PFI Senior Funding Limited

PIF Vulcans Lane Limited

PIF West Cumbria Limited

Premier Custodial Finance Limited

Premier Custodial Investments Limited

Premier Custodial Sub-debt Limited
Pucklechurch Custodial Services Limited

Reno Water (Moray) Limited

Renc Water (Tay) Limited

Robertson Education (Aberdeenshire) Group Holdings Limited
Robertson Education (Ingleby Barwick) Group Holdings Limited
Robertson Education {Ingleby Barwick) Holdings Limited
Robertson Education (Ingleby Barwick) Limited
Rebertson Health (Chester le Street) Group Holdings Limited
Robertson Health (Chester le Street) Holdings Limited
Robertson Health {Chester le Street) Limited
8D Marine Services (Holdings) Limited

3D Marine Services Limited

TBEP Investments Limited

Tiverton Healthcare Facilities Limited

VLE Holdings Limited
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24, Investments in Subsidiaries {continued)

Vulcans Lane Estates Limited
Wansbeck Healthcare Facilities (Holdings) Limited
Wansbeck Healthcare Facilities Limited

WCEM Holdings Limited
West Cumbria Estates Management Limited

Registered Office -2 Floor. 11 Thistle Street, Edinburgh, EH2 IDF

ABC Schools (Holdings) Limited

ABC Schools Limited

Alpha Schools (West Lothian) Holdings Limited
Alpha Schools (West Lothian) Limited
Bannockbumn Group Limited

Bannockbum Holdings Limited

Bannockbum Homes Limited

Catchment Highland Holdings Limited
Catchment Highland Limited

Catchment Limited

Covesea Holdings Limited

Dumfries Facilities (Holdings} Limited

Dumfries Facilities Ltd

Elbon PF] Fund II

Elgin Water Limited

Forfar Healthcare (Holdings) Limited

Forfar Healthcare Limited

Infrastructure Managers Limited

International Water UU (Highland) Limited

KE Project Limited

Kinnoull House Limited

LH Project Limited

Lochgilphead Healthcare Services (Holdings) Limited
Midlothian Schools (Debtco) Limited

Midlothian Schools (Holdings) Limited
Midlothian Schools Limited

Morris Eddie Limited

NVSH Holdco Limited

Robertson Education (Aberdeenshire) Holdings Limited
Robertson Education (Aberdeenshire) Limited
Salisbury Healthcare Facilities (Holdings) Limited
Salisbury Healthcare Facilities Limited

Tiverton Healtheare Facilities (Holdings) Limited
West Lothian Education Limited

Registered Office -4/7 Esplanade » St Helier, Jersey, JEI 0DE
BIF Offshare Windkraft Holdings Limited

Registered Office — St James Chambers, Athol Street, Douglas, Iste of Man, IM1 1JE
PFI Infrastructure Company plc

Registered Office — Beaufort Court Egg Farm Lane, Off Station Road, Kings Langley, Herifordshire, WD4 8LR

Black Hill Wind Farm Topco Limited
Black Hill Wind Farm Hoeldco Limited
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24. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)
Black Hill Wind Farm Limited
Registered Office — 6, Rue Eugene Ruppert L-2453, Luxembourg

Barclays Integrated Infrastructure Project sarl

The companies listed below are subsidiaries of the Company but are not wholly owned. All investments are in ordinary
shares:

Registered Office -Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6AF

HpC King’s College Hospital (Holdings) Limited (75%)
HpC King’s College Hospital (Issuer) plc (75%)

HpC King's College Hospital Limited (75%)

Innovate East Lothian (Holdings) Limited (90%)
Innovate East Lothain Limited (90%)

Reno Water Highland Limited (70%)

Reno. Water (Tay) Limited (55%)

Registered Office -2 Eloor. 11 Thistle Street, Edinburgh, EH2 IDF

Catchment Moray Holdings Limited (85%)
Catchment Moray Limited (85%)

Catchment Tay Holdings Limited (51%)
Catchment Tay Limited (51%)

Covesea Limited (34%)

Lochgilphead Healtheare Services Limited (55%)

Registered Office — 6, Rue Eugene Ruppert L-2453, Luxembourg
Helios B (SJDA 11) (90%)
Societe des Bus Hybrides Dijonnais (90%)

Registered Office — 6" Floor 350 Euston Road, Regents Place, London, NW1 34X

Connect A50 Limited (75%)
Connect Roads Limited (75%)

Registered Office — 33 Wigmore Street, London, WI1U 10X

Alert Communications Group Holdings Limited (80%)

Alert Communications (2006) Limited
Alert Communications (Holdings) Limited
Alert Communications Limited
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24, Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)

BIIF Holdco Limited has given a guarantee under section 479C of the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2019 to the following of its subsidiary companies and the following subsidiary companies are
exempt from the requirements of the Act relating to the audit of individual statements by virtue of Section 479A of the

Companies Act 2006:

Company Name Registered Number
Anavon Limited 03345300
Bannockburn Holdings Limited S§C195478
Duchesspark Holdings Limited 06420368
12 Holdco 2 Limited 06239026
Lanterndew Limited 05133562
M1-A1 Investments Limited 06003363
NVSH Topco Limited 06965694
Infrastructure Investors Castlehill Holdings Limited 03897418
Elbon Holdings (3) Limited 05572070
Infrastructure Investors Castlehill Limited 03897442
Eastbrook Facilities Holdings Limited 04309178
Alpha Schools (West Lothian Holdings) Limited 8C212847
Blackshaw Healthcare Services Holdings Limited 03872309
Dumfries Facilities (Holdings) Limited $C203849
GH Bodmin Heldings Limited 03748084
GII Bury IIeldings Limitcd 03748018
GH Newham Holdings Limited 03748050
Kinnoutl House Holdings Limited 05624927
Luton Healthcare Facilities (Holdings) Limited 03997460
Machrie Burn Limited 03719548
Newmount Holdings Limited 04212599
Wansbeck Healthcare Facilities (Holdings) Limited 03933041
Elbon PFI Fund (Investments) Limited 04196287
Morris Eddie Limited SC201468
Bannockburn Group Limited 5C237879
Newschools (Penweddig) Holdings Limited 03773789
PIF West Cumbria Limited 05780663
Robertson Education (Aberdeenshire) Group Holdings Limited 05934601
Salisbury Healthcare Facilities (Holdings) Limited SC255428
2 Bidco Limited 06228634
12 Holdco Limited 06228633
Kilmarnock PFI Holdings Limited 05971387
Matrix PFI Developments Limited 05855043
Matrix PFI GP Limited 05799677
Matrix PFI Holdings Limited 06435381
Matrix FPMS Limited 06378798
Defence Management Group Holdings Limited 06385476
Matrix FPMS Holdings Limited 06434638
Matrix Premier Holdings Limited 05855031
Defence Management (Holdings) Limited ' 03564570
Premier Custodial Finance Limited 03849244
Premier Custodial Investments Limited 03849142
Premier Custodial Sub-debt Limited 05964120
Normanby Healthcare (Holdings) Limited 04152700
WCEM (Holdings) Limited 03955220
Robertson Education (Ingleby Barwick) (Holdings) Limited 04375611
Robertson Health (Chester le Street) Holdings Limited 04236937

46



AV9 N$DT UOpuoT ‘133115 wouue,) g/ ‘aae| ] uouuz)
dd6 tHI

‘ymquipy ‘@oe]] UCISUNET §] “3UQ AILLIBLEND)
DAo LOH

“SPISIAQUINE] UHON ‘|nj] ‘Peoy spea ‘Aep vaauan

4C1 THF ‘UBmquipg “1eng ofsItL [ [ o[ pug
4A1 THA 'UFmquipg 320§ APSIYL { [ FOO[4 pug

4C11 THA ‘UBInquipg 33ng aIsYL [ 100} puz
401 THA ‘YEmquipg 1905 S || 1001 puz

A1 ZHF ‘YSmquipg 1ang AISIYL | | Jooj4 pug
XVE IMN

‘uopuorT ‘agel] SjuaBay ‘peoy uolsng e 100[d WY
198 $2ad “unsiqaq

‘Aqia(g ‘aueT 00 *1£ XOH Od 91d 2240y s|joy

AV9 N¥DH ‘uopucT “15an§ uouwe;) g7 ‘adejd uouue)y
J¥9 N¥JT ‘UOPUOT 921§ UOUUR)) 8/ ‘93B[d UOUURY)
AV9 N¥OH ‘uopud ang uouus) 3, ‘aoe]] LoUue?y

AV NYOR UOpuOT ‘aalg UOULE]) g ‘a0r]d UouE)

Ad1 THA UBmquipd 193§ apsiyL 1§ 100]4 puz
INL T2
“Aaung “praiagea’ aaug plrydunds wned Nied iy

AV9 N¥DF ‘UopuoT “123ns uouue ) g/ ‘30e]d ucuue)
o parsIay

1[qWaR(g 1€
UYoIRy [

12qu0ag] 1§

Jaquadac] ¢
laquosd ¢

Iaquuada(y [ ¢
Jaquiada(] ¢
Ioquiasa(] €

ol 1€
19quIAsa(] [§
19quava | £

YsTE [ €
RQWaNRJ [£

udy o¢
yoIe 1€
1quiddd( 1€
IQUIA] 1§

aep
pud poriad
Supunorry

£

[l

£5
et

€61
78
£71

el
3 74
9t

34

1
0of

06

It

000¥
6107 2 1€
1®
yuamAedasd
pue Jwodul
pansady

1237 ££0Z

Ly 6£0T

091 THOT/1£0T
PEEL 6£0T

faud £207

¥ZE LEOT

€8¢ LEOT

oSy 9107
£8T°1 020t

9%z 8702

8LI 870T

L11 §e0t

591 $I0T
1971 870

13€ §T0z

L£9 LE0T
000% o Jo
PIAII. Dpanawm

2|
F5INaY ho uu.nn—

Ly

%SLTL

%05't1

WETEl

%sL'tl
%009
+ 404l

%006
%0071
%001

%05't1
%9
+3d04dI1

%00°E1
WOTE1

%00tl
%0081

%Sl

TR

padde
AL
3310

ST
60¢°€

5071
00L'6

¥IT9
£09'e
6LLY

PSR'T
9%t'6
998°¢
69¢°1
688

LTl
6188
9€77
£95°¢

000F
pIsueApe
wng

uodsuel]
uoneanpg

uonEINpy
NI
alel[eaL]

uonEMpy
uoneIMpy
uonEdNpy

podsure]
Arenp
aresyieey
uoneonpg
aonusny

0nNsh[
AIe0yl|BOH

Amenipy

areoyesy

101038

M
1§ puedug

puejoog
S2[BM

2 puejSug
puB[Ig
pueeds

pueoag
pugjiodg

PuB[I09g
mu—d 3

%y purjdug
S

2 pue[dug
ST M

7% puejdug
Sarem

% putidug
salem

i puejBug
mo—,m A

7 pue(Bug
pue|10ag
sarem

7 pue[Sug
safem

% pugjdug

uoiesodiodng
Jo Ajuno)

%0008 panun] anoy Asddayg
%00°08 poNIUIT Armalen Junng
%0008 penwiry (o) uoleonpy |[amag
%0009 PaNWIT SINI[IOL] 2redY)esH [[IYqoIS
%0008 PY] SHPIOR J JIENP{EIH mOBseiDy
prT (Kreuuiuy
%0008 feA0y y3mquIpg) aJedyjEay uosuo)
%08 vt PNl {31ysIAY 158} DDA
%08 FS pAIY (31ysIKY YuoN) $3014138 ddd
%0008 PAITT V- TJAL 193UU0D)
%0008 pY] SAISIUAD)
%000¢ paunr] {wreyngg) 3seali[esf HOSUO)
pr1(spaat)
%00°0S Auedwo)) voddng uotieanp YL
%0008 P (eyBuy 1seq) SN0 WAPOW
%0005 PY1 {op1siaquinyy) $1Mo;) UWIAPOL
%0009 PYT {(MBYSIAL ) A1eaU)[aH Juwng
%0008 - PRI XBMSE,]
payuy
%0008 (S2)00IqUIPPY) S3M1AIIG YIfeay] Aoy
saIegs SIJEIIOSSE PUE SIINJUIA JUIOL
Aremipao
Surpjoy

%

:anp sweoj jo sienonred Yim 1211330] SSIRIDOSSE PUR S2INJUDA JUtf Ul SJUSULLSIATI 21 MOo[aq pajsi] salueduwod ay ],

SAINJUI A JUTOL PUE SARIIOSSY UL SJUIUSIAUY 5T

8107 19q253(] | £ papu? Jeak ayl 1o,

SluauuR1els [e1dUBUL] 9] 0] SIJON

pajIury ooproH A9



AV NYDH ‘Uopuc 0a1§ UOUUEY) 8/ ‘308]d UouLe)

AdT THI YFNquIpd “12R1§ ANSIL | [ J00} pug
XVt IMN

UOPUSY “308d $HuBay “PeGY UOISNT DSE 10011 Y
XVE IMN

‘wopuo ‘23] S$1uaday] ‘proy ucKng Ocg 100) Y19

d06 019§ UOPUOT YOI ‘PEOY UBLLION ¢/
ar 184

‘[o1sug “fang UL ‘asno] Aengy peoig 00 BAY ]
HHY [N ‘Pue(Bug “sayauepy 10003

anO[IeY;} §-€ “J0OL] PIg Y 5aotag adg Aueqry O/
dH¥ | ‘pueBug ‘Salsayouepy ‘1dang

SNojeY)) §-f 10014 pIf Py sedlaIag 3dg Aueqry O/
arisd

‘Joisug] 1AL UL “¥enoH Aend) prolg 100[] PUYL
AV9 NI “uopuaT ‘1eang uouue)) §/, ‘aoe[gd vouue)

AV NEDH “UopUCT 122115 UOUURDY §f “301]4 Bouuey
Qg0 191 Ass1af aara 1§ “apeue[dsy Ly
S0URLY ‘SLIE] “BO0SL “AUUAl A Ip Ay “¢

Fnoquiaxiry g7~ Heddny augdng any ‘g
Fmoquusxtyy ¢op7-1 Weddny augdng oy ‘g

AV9 NFDH UopuoT “pans uouuey g/ “ade[J uouue))
DVL RYd

“uoy ‘Aojuems ‘prOY UOpuoT ‘arenbg yeQ AYM, §
AV9 NPDH “Uopuo] ‘1an§ UOUUE)) g/ ‘308 Uouuey
AV9 NFDH ‘WopUcT ‘13205 Uolie) g4 ‘23| Uouuey
AV9 NFOH “Uopuor “1eang UouuR)) 8/ ‘ade|d uouue))

AVS NFDH ‘Uopuo] ‘Jaang uouus)) g/ “3oe|d uUouue)
Yo passiday

19quIa%a( 1€

YoIe [ £
Yo g
USR] [ €
JoquIana( [ ¢
laqusade 1t
13qUIa0a(] 1¢
IaquIadaq g
13qUIdA] 1§
2quiase( (£

IqUAN(] 1§
Yorepy [ g
13QuIada(] | €

20qUR33( 1¢
Areruqaj g7

QIR [
QUL (€
arep 1¢
yorR g
Yol 1¢
qareW [¢
aup

pu? porsad
dununolny

8¢

141!

79

108°1

£ET
LLL
Pt

1zt
0003
6107 (1€
13
mamAedaad
pug Juzedrm
pansayy

ItT

rit

r01
6L

96
9T
¥50°C

s
1vs's

$56
86
£26
190°¢
£33

LS9
(LU1ES

PIAIIA
FLEPEIT

[£0€
41174

SE0E

9L0z
1e02
[£0Z
90z

oz

Op0T
£E0T
£E0T
1173
1e0T
utoy Jo

Anyewt
Jo %

:14

%5871
WSLEL

%01°T1

%9TTI
%0b 8

%00°C1
%0001

%400°T1

SsT'6
%0t Tl
%086

%178
144
+%88°L
14
+%88'L
papdde
NelL
15313U]

L69
189°1

£65°¢

9r8
95
8E9
144

P08

6002
8TEL

9p1°01
POL'L
97L'6
TES'LE
67L'8
8219

0003 P
WDUBAPE

wng

SajeAn

uolesnpy ¥ puelfug 905 bT PANWIIT $3INAIIG S|OOYDG JAISAPURI

uoneanpy PUEpeds %000t paUWIT] S[0OY3S Wajquy
SO

Hodsuel], WwpueSug  %00°5! panwry QS0 / LLW 108uu0’;
SOEM

uodsuer], 7 pueiul %0061 PRI CEATY 1A
S3|BM,

uodsuwi], Ppueduz  o000F  o1d YUI |y weysima] gormuamn A1)
SIEM

Srealjeoq FPuRpEUl %0057 PNt (PI0JXQ) SN uoIqIY
SIBAN

areay)|eaq ppueBug 07 09] P17 (1913010 A8 ) 1RSI ISA[BED)
Qem

Aresest| wpueldug %0007 PIT (3[EPISp|E)) 2redyleaH 15AjeIR)

SI[EM panr (uorduriied)

uvodsuer], ppuweiduy  %006T SATAJAG WawaFeury peoy
sa[EMm

Hodsuel], P pugdul  9l9ld panwi| dnoiny juswadeuey peoy
SOpeM

uonenpy 2 pueldug 90068 pannn [ende)) sjooydg

AS10u7 Kasiof %0008 PaYLULT JUSLIISIAU] UOISSIINSURI], aN[§]

JuawaFeue souRld 540008 SYS TN Rdoue)

uoneonp3 dUEL] %0009 (€1 vars) euesiT

sansnf dUBL]  %EE9E (T1 YAIS) AdS ¥ $o1PH
safem

vodsuel], B pueBug  900°0¢ P S3s1AJes SABMUBTH MO[SUnof]
SOTZM

srennesH wpuePBul 240008 panunry Aueduio) fendsoy [[esjem UL

saeM payuiy

A31aug wpuedug 40008 Jeoys wey3uioys uoissTswel ], an|g

SAEM, paywr]

A8aoug wpueldug 040008 Apiry uOpuoT UOISSIWSUEI] I1i[g]

ABaug Rasldaf  wa000C P T ADUTE AL UOISSTIISURIY, 3n]g

AB1aug Aasidf 940008 payuly | AdueA) uoIssimsuel [ anfg

109§ ooy saodiornf SHABYS
Jo Anpunoe)  Azemipao
sSwmpjoy
%

SIJEIIOSSE PUE SRITUIA JOIOf

(Panuiu02) SAANJUI A VIO PUE SIJBIIOSSY UI SHURTIISIAT] 6T

8107 19quada(] | € papus Ieak ayy Jo{
SJUSLIRIEIS [BISUBUIL] Y} 0} SON

payiuty 03pIoH AL



6V

Bquaq 1§ PRy aoueurj (Arewuruy
4a1 ZH 'Ymquipg Wang apsiy [[ fo0]4 pug - - - - - uoneanpy puepjoog %08 [pA0Y YBINQUIPS) a1eoyIes} HOSUO))
PaywWI sfuaugsaAu] {Aneuwdjuy
AdT THA “yBmquipg 911§ a[ISIYL [ [ J00|{ puZ Qs ¢ - - - - - uoneanpg puenosg %0S [eAoy y3inquipg) a1edyieay HOSUO.)
: panrwry s3upjoy (Areunyuy
dd1 THA yBnquipg “eng apsIyL || 100] pug Jaquasa(y | g - - - - - uonEsnpy puepodg %05 1eA0y yEinquipg) aseoyyear] Losuo)
A1 THA YEnquipg “jeang 2SI || Joojd pug Taquada(] [€ - - - - - uonesnpy pue[03g %St pawunT sBulpioy (arysiAy 1seq) D04
pajury
A1 THA YBmMQuIpF ‘12305 apsIy [ [ 10o]d pug Jaquiaza( [¢ - - - - - uotEanpy puepoag %5S SBUIP[O}] (3NYs1AY YUON) S301A198 Jdd

XVE ITMN safem
‘uopuor] “a0e]d 5)UaBY “Peny UOKENRT (CE 1004 1Y yate (€ - - - - - Hodsuer], % pue(dug %08 PanuIry SBUIDIOH |- 193UU0)

1938 $Z30 “aysigrq safem
‘Aqa(] ‘oueT 100 1€ XOH Od 91d 2940y s|j0Y Taquaoa(] 1¢ - - - - - Ay % puejdug %08 P SFUpjoY SosTuar
saem panury
AV9 NI ‘uopueT 19ang ucuue)y g/, aoe|d uoue)) 13quiadaq | § - - - - - amoyjea ) » puejSug 2405 SBUIP[OY (WeyIn(T) 218343{eS}] LI0SUO,)
Sa[eM pawr (spaag) sSurploy
d¥9 NPOH ‘UOPUOT RING UOULE) g/, ‘38| UOULE)) Yarel 1€ - - - - - uoneanpg 7 pue|Sug %06 Auedwo) poddng uoneonpg auy,
SaeAy patury
d¥9 N¥OH ‘uopuor “pang uouue) g/ ‘3084 uouue)) Joquiadaq 1€ - - - - - asysag ¥ puejdug %05 (e13uy jseg) s3wpjoy suNo)) wapoy
SIEM pajiy
J¥9 NJH ‘uopuo “paing uouue)) g7 “aoejd uouue)) 1dy og - - - - - asnsng ¥ puej3ug %08 (aprs1aquingy) s3UIP|OH SUNO) WAPa
Jd1 ZHE YBnquipg jeang aPsIYL || 100[§ pug Yarepy 1€ - - - - - areoyyEsH puefioog %09 - opd (meysiy ) soueurd Jruwng
da1 ZHA YSnquipg 12ang AISIL, 1| 100[4 puz Iy 1€ - - - - - areayljeaH puepoog %09 PRI (MEYSIAY) SSUIP|OY Juwng

INL TTLY sajem
“Aaung ‘pratpeiies ‘A playSunids umo) yied Iy Iaquiaaag] i€ - - - - - Areny 7 puejdug %08 paywi] s3upoy xemsey
safemy PaNWIT (s{00IqUIPPY)
AV9 NrDd UOpuOT 19ang uouue)) g/ ‘33g[4 uouur)) JaqQuiadaq] | ¢ - - - - - sIYIEIH » pue[dug 0108 sSuIpjOH 59314195 Yl A3y

D18 ¥AD salepm
"ANU3AG) Y] SSANSNE POOMISI M “ABAY PODMISIAY Jaqueoa( ¢ £ £l S20T %8TEl 6 vodsue],  pueBug %000 pawT anyspaojers oy unyBiy
paitwir]
4d1 THE ‘Y3mquipg 1ang JSIYL [ 10014 pug YOI 1€ £LF L4 £E0¢ %LOEL 907 uoneonpy puepoIg %Ll diys1aupieq sfooyss y3nquipyg sy,

rar 1sd saEM
‘|oislg “Palg oull] “asnof] Aeng) peolg 1oo]4 pryf Jaquiasac] [§ - - - - L¥E uoneanpy PPuRSug %4084 P3}WI SUGNNn|og S[00YIS PIGHES
FLETRAR:| - - puejeaf palwr]
ISEjog J9aNS PIOIPRY QS UDUEY UOYNF JRATID O/ laquizse( [£ - - 969 uoneonpg WRUMON %0961 SAVAIIG S[OOYDS WINIPUIN pue soSiueg
zunqng “aenbg uoLLap 57 WSy 1004 1811 13quasa( [€ - - $T6 uoneanpy pUBPIL  %0SHT pawIT 5331A85 ddd INSD

31JJ0 pAIANSIdNY Aep 0003 0003 ues| Jo padde 000% p PlURE N uonslodioany saangs SIEIIOSSE UK SIIMUIA JUIOP
pua porzad 6107 3 1€ Arangew EILA] Vespe Jo Anuno)) Aremipio
Snyunoday ® PRARRL 4 a1eq FEEYEIL wng Smpjoy
yomipdagd 15N 9,
pue Jweru
pIntay
(PanuYRUOI) SANYUI A JUIOF PUE SI)EII0SSY UY SIUAM)SIAU] 4

8107 19quiads(] [£ Papua Jeak ay} 1o,
SIU2UID)E)S [RIOUBUIY U] 0] SOJON

payiwualy 0OpPIoH AIId



AV9 N¥DF ‘UopuoT 123ng uouue) g/ ‘3] UouLe)
AV9 N+JH ‘Uopuo] J1aang uouur) g7 “ase|J uouue)
AV9 N¥DT “UopueT 39315 uouur)) g7 “ased uouue;)
AV9 NFJT “UOPUOT 192115 Ucuue,) 3/ ‘ade|q uouuRy
AV9 N#DH ‘UOpUOT J0ang UoUuE.) §/ “308[] UoUUE))
AV9 N#DA ‘Uopuo] ‘19a1g UoUUB)) g/ ‘3dk| ] uouue)
OVL Y

‘Juay ‘Aojuemg ‘proy uopuo] ‘arenbs e AYM §
SPpUE|s]

PUURYD ‘QE0 1A ‘A2ssaf “JaaY 1S “apeurdsd Ly
Spue[s]

[PUUBY ) ‘A0 T “A3S19r Ja1[aH 1§ “apeueydsd /4
d¥9 N#DF “uopuo] Jaang uouuey) g/ ‘ade]J uouwes
d¥9 N#OJA ‘UOpuC] 192115 UOULE} 8/, “39R]4 UOULR))
spue|s]

[PUURYD) ‘(IO THr 495131 “Jo1[ag 1§ “opeuedsq L p
AV9 N+DF “‘Uopuo] 18ang uouue,) g/ “3aeJ uouue,)
AV9 N3 Uopudr] “j1sang uouues) g/ “adeq uouue)
dV9 NP ‘UOpuoT “JRalg uouur)) g/, ‘ade|d UOUUE))
dd6 tHA

‘Y MQuIPS ‘208 UOISLNET 5] ‘AU AIULIGLENY
DAae L.NH

‘SPISIqUINY YUON “[INH ‘PeoY Spea] ‘AR PASUSD
4d1 ZHA 'YSINQuIpE 13anS apsIYL | [ Joojd pug
dKI1 THA YENqUIPY 12308 3fIsnyL, 1 | 00[d puz

MYjo paNsIdIY

1Bqaag ¢
1DQUI(] €
IaqQUIdda( [ €
e (¢
I3qUIasa(] | §
Jaquisaaq] 1§
1PQW( [§
Yo 1€
el g
Yale [
Yo 1€
el [¢
UoreN 1€
orEW 1€
13quIada(] £
Hare [
IaquIase( 1§
Iaquiasaq ¢
laquiazaq 1¢
aep

pu? porrad
Sunpwnoayy

0003
81T N 1€
1
juawiiedaad
puit Juxodur
panaIy

0003

PAAIRIL
SLERERL ) |

ueogjo
Ananyew
joaq

0¢

padde
PLa
FLERETLN |

0003 P
dueApe

wng

SS[EAN panwn (yEnoloqiaag)

uodstre1} ¥ puedug %y $301AJ0§ JUsWIFeUR pROY

S2eM poyI (191520N0[0))

uodsue1y % puejduyg %ZH SINAIRG JUswaFeue proy
safem,

wodsuer] % pue|Bug Wit AW JawaFeuRy peoy
SafeM

yodsuel] 7 pue(Sug %Th a1d pajeptosuor) Juawadewely peoy

SIeM PalIry

vodsuely, 7 pue[dug %05 7 Judunisaau] sAemuyBI mosunoy

Slem pajtury

yodsuer]. % pue[Bug %08 Jusuisaau] sAemySi mosunopy

Safepy payury (s8wpjoy)

areayBal] ¥ pue[Suy %06 Avedwiory rndsopq [1esfem 4L

AZ1ug Aasiaf 206 PSIUIT SIUSUSIAU] UOISSIWSURI] anjg

P SIUSLWISIAU]

ABrug RasJar %05 [eoys weySuLsys UoISSISuBL] Snjg

Saem paiwr (s3utp|og])

AF1eug % puejBuyg %08 [eoys wey3u1Iayg UoISSLWSUEI] anjg

safem payury (s3uwpjopy)

A81oug % puejdug %406 Aelry uOpUOT UOISSIUSURIT At

PN SIUIUBSIAUL

ABraug Kostar %05 7 Adupepg uoisstwisuelj anjg

SAEM Ppajug

A3reug ¥ puedug %05 (s3uipjoH) 7 Aauep uoIsSIWSURI] In[g

Sajem Py

ABrug 2 pue[dug 240% {sBurpjo)} | Asulem, vorssnsuely anyg
safem

vodsue], % puejdug %08 panwr (sdutpjoy) amoy Aaddoyg

uotjeanpy puepodg %0s pawr JH Aemaren Suing

SIBM : Pty

uonesnpy % pue(duy %08 SBUIP[O (1104} uolieanpd [[amag

paywry

areoylesH puepoog %09 (s8utpjoH) seni[oe] areo[eaH 1I1Y4OIS

pauwr] (s3UIpjoH)

RN eI puenoog %05 santor aeayiesl modse|n

PLUREIN uoneledioduy saamys
Joinuno)  Arsuipio
Fuipjoy
%

$2]BI20SSE PUE SIANIUIA JUIOf

(Pa1ugin0) SANJUI A JUIOL PUR SI)EIIOSSY UT SYUIKIE]SIAU] ‘$T

$10T 3RQUIINQ 1§ PAPUD 3824 1 103
SJUSWISIE]S [BIOUBUIJ SU) 0] SAION

pajury 0dpioH AI1d



IS

DT VAD ECAN . payu]
*AUAADD) YIed SSAWSNE POOMISIM “ABM POOMISIA 1PqWA( [£ - - - - - Hodsuei], % pue[dug %0¥ sBuiploH alysprogelg 1of Sunysi
Aa1 ZHA ‘YFmqmpg “Rang aisiyL [ 1 J00)d pug YU 1€ - - - - - uorEINpy pueIoag %L1 papun (sBuploH} 4§59

EEIET
AVY N¥OA “UOpU0T] 190ng UOUUR)) g, “a0e]J UouuE) Jaquiaxa 1¢ - - - . - uoneanpy % puejdug %6t parw [ende) sjooyss
rar 1sd SAHBAL Pl
‘[oIsug “19eng aoulig ‘asnoy Aen) peolq 100[] PIL Jaquised € - - - - - uorEanpg 2 puejSug %ST 02P[OH] SUOHN|OS S[O0YDS PIOJES
MLl TLd puepaif payuir] s8wpjoH
‘sejjag “1990§ pIOJpayg (S “‘UIURY O] I3AB3D) O/ Ioquana(] | £ - - - - - uonEINpg WaUON %0T S22IAIOE S|O0YDS WILIpUSN pue Jodueg
Z utgngq ‘asenbg uolLApy §7 ‘WY 100)] IS 1oquana(] 1§ - - - - - uonEInpy puB|aIp %CT panwi (sSwpoy) seo1atag ddd WSD
SAEM pajiury
AV9 NFDH ‘UopuoT ‘19ang uouue)) g/ ‘ade|] uoue)) 12quiaa(] (€ - - - - - uoneInpy % pue|3ug %5T SBUIPIOY 5921IAISS S|00YDS JAISAYIUB
dd1 gHA “YFmquipg ‘12ang apsiyL [ [ J00[d puz Yosey [¢ - - - - - uotjeanpy puejjoog %0¢ paywir] (s3urpjoy) sjeoyos waquig

XVE [N sarem
uopuo ey spuaday proy oIS (GE 10011 Y Yorew 1¢ - - - - - uodsueij 7 puejdug %1 panw sSUIPfOY OSD / LLN 193UU0T)

XVE IAN safem
‘uapuor] ‘ase(d SjusBay ‘proy umsng OS¢ 4001 tpo Yol 1€ - - - - - uodsuer], % puedug %61 panunty sBupoH $EV /Y 19uua’y
av isg =M ppuI]
‘[o1s1g 19915 UL ‘esnol] Aeng) prolg Jool] pay 12quiasd (£ - - - - - areayleay % puejSug %57 s3UIp|OH (PI0Jx()) MeYI[RA[] UolqlY
gH¥ [N ‘puejduy ‘Jeisaysuepy 135mg SR parun
oY) $-¢ “100]d PIf ] SA0tAIG 2d§ AueqlyY O/ Iaquaoa( [ - - - - - reNIESH % pue[3uy %Ll sfuipjoy Dds [edsoy aarysImsaaom
HHY T “puedug “101sayouepy 10ong SAeM pair
AWOLELD G- “I00[ PIE PY] S201A13G 24§ Aueq)y 04D Jaquiea( IE - - - - - dedyiedy % pugjdug %07 s3uiploy 54§ [endsoy 3|epopre])
rar 154 salem ad
‘|O1SHg Wang Ao SN0} ABng) peolg] 1001 pang], WQ( 1§ - - - - - podsuel ] 7% puejsug %5T (aoueur]) sea1AI>S WawaSeuely peoy
rar 1sg salem patwiL-q s3upjo} (uo1dulited)
‘[oIsug “9ang MUl ‘asnol Aend) peolq Joop pay[, QRN {§ - - - - - podsiel] % pug[3ug %67 SADAIDS JUaUIIFRUR PROY
Ao paasisay aep 0003 0003 anoy jo paydde 003 P 30N nopkacdicIn) s3I8Ys SI)EIIOSSE PUE SAINJBIA JUOf

puz peuad  §10Z 23( I£ Aucysm e aueApe 10 Anuno)  LIsdpag
Sugunory e PRI g e IS wng Fmipjoy
wawipdasd ISV %
pu¥ awosu}
PNy

{Panunios) SAAMIUI A JUIO[ PUE SNBIDOSSY UT SJUIW)SIAU] 6T

2107 19qUIad3(] [§ POPUS JBdA 3} 10y
SjuauIale]s [erdueul] ay) 0] SAION

pajyiwaty 0opjoH AITH



